A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, February 10, 2015
At
5:15 p.m,
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 02-06-15

4:00 p.m.




Light and Power Board 2 February 10, 2015
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance

1, Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
tagether to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any niember of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsevhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the dgenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 27, 2015.
(Approval recommended) (p. 3)

b. Consideration of a confirming Purchase Order for transformers to serve the Park Place
Hotel. (Approval recommended) (Wilson) (p. 6)

C. Consideration of AT&T Contract. (Approval recommended) (Menhart) (p. 12)

d. Consideration of Telecommunications Rate Increase and setting of a Public Hearing.
(Approval recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p. 24)

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4, New Business

a, Consideration of Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary Service Rate and setting of a
Public Hearing. (Arends/Myers-Beman) (p. 28)

b. Introduction of Strategic Plan updated Business Goals. (Arends/All Staff) (p. 34)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.
C. From Board.

7. Public Comment
fst




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, January 27, 2015

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Bob Spence,
Jan Geht, John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Jered Ottenwess, City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, W. Peter Doren, Scott:Meithart, Karla Myers-Beman, Tom
Olney, Kelli Schroeder, Rod Sold ie Tvardek, Jessica Wheaton,
Blake Wilson

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. b dirman Taylor.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calend

Item 4 on the Agenda' Business

a. Consideration of City Commission Resolution regarding West Front Street reconstruction
funding level.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Jered Ottenwess, City Manager
Tim Lodge, City Engineer

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Moved by Geht, seconded by McGuire, to reject the City Commission’s request.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 Januvary 27, 2015
The following individuals from the Public addressed the Board:
Tim Lodge, City Engineer

Roll Call:

Yes — Budros, McGuire, Palisin, Spence, Geht, Taylor

No - Carruthers

CARRIED.

Moved by Budros, seconded by Palisin, that Light and Power agree to fund up to $527,000 for
the high level lighting, low level decorative lighting and the primary service.

At the request of Chairman Taylor, Stephanie Tvardek restat d 16 motion.

inotion be amended to read;

With the consensus of Budros, Chairman Taylor propos:

Moved by Budros, seconded by Palisin, that Light:a
lighting, low level decorative lighting and the p
amount of $527,000.

. Power agree
service as pr

fund the high level
ited with an estimated

Roll Call:
Yes — Budros, Carruthers, Palisin, Sj
No — McGuire, Geht ’

CARRIED.

Discussion continued,
involvement in the pl:

6:42 p.m. Jered Ottenwes d the meeting.

Moved by Palisin, seconded by McGuire, that the Board authorizes the Executive Director to
submit the Six Year Capital Improvements Plan — 2015 as amended to the City Manager for

review and approval of the City Commission and City Planning Commission.

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None,




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.

January 27, 2015

I. W. Peter Doren reported on a recent ruling by the Michigan State Coutt of Appeals
regarding the customer’s right to choose its utility if more than one utility runs in

proximity to the property.
6:48 p.m. Jeff Palisin departed the meeting.
b. From Staff.

1. Staff presented the 2014 Strategic Plan Year End Reyiew.

The following individuals addressed the Board;

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Ener
Tom Olney, Operations Manager
Blake Wilson, System Engineer
Scott Menhart, Manager of Telecom & “Féghnolog

vices & Key A

position.

The followi;

ot ‘city projects.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

14 (first quarter) financial

( airman Geht directed staff to develop
Spayers regarding their expectation of the utility’s

There being no objection, Chairman Taylor declared the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretary

/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

Q_C_‘,T. 19]2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services & K&y AccountsCBc/\)
Blake Wilson, Systems Engincer @
Date: February 4, 2015

Subject: Equipment Purchase for Park Place Hotel

Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) was recently notified that the Park Place Hotel has selected
the utility as its electric service provider, Although details regarding the timing of the transition to
TCL&P have not been determined, staff is taking a proactive approach to having all necessary
equipment on hand in anticipation of the transition.

The Park Place Hotel owns their transformer which is rated at a different primary voltage than used
by TCL&P. Staff has evaluated the transformer and determined that it can continue to be used to
serve the hotel, but an isolator will need to be installed to convert TCL&P’s primary voltage to the
transformer’s voltage.

Staff requested pricing information from T&R Electric and ABB for the isolator and received a
response from T&R Electric — see attached quote. The isolator costs $31,400 and two will be -
required so that a back-up is immediately available in case the one installed fails. Due to the lead
time between ordering the equipment and having it on hand, staff, per the direction of the executive
director, has ordered the equipment.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item, If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss the matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be place on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar™ portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD APPROVES A CONFIRMING PURCHASE
"ORDER WITH T&R ELECTRIC IN THE AMOUNT OF $62,800 FOR TWO ISOLATORS
FOR THE PARK PLACE HOTEL TRANSFORMER YOLTAGE CONVERSION.




Call Toll Free 800-843-7994
{Outsida U.S.) 605-534-3555
FAX 605-534-3861

SUPPLY COMPANY INGORPORATED
BOX 180, COLMARM, SOUTH DAKOTA 57017

“THE TRANSFORMER PEOPLE"s

Quote Rev. 36709-2 2/5/2015 9:31:30 AM

Thursday, February 05, 2015

TO: Blake Wilson PHONE: 231-932-4556
Traverse City Light Power FAX: 231-922-2092
RE: Transformer Quotation

We are pleased to offer you the following for your consideration per our specification as follows:

ITEM 1 - 3 Phase PAD MOUNT
SPECIFICATIONS:
KVA: 1500
High Voltage: 13800GRDY/7970
Low Voltage: 12470Y/7200

Taps: WITAPS 2 X 2 1/2% +/-
Notes: Rewound with Copper
Parts and

Accessories:

Primary Bushings, Dead Front, Loop Feed
Secondary Bushings, Dead Front
Bayonet Fusing

LBOR 2 Position Switch

Oil Level Gauge
Pressure/Vacuum Gauge
Temperature Gauge

Pressure Relief Device
Pentahead Entry Assembly

Drain Valve with Sampler
Mineral Qil (standard)

Non-PCB Label

Bell Green Paint

Undercoating
PRICE: $31,400.00 Each Quantity: 2
Warranty: 36 MONTH
Shipment: 6-8 weeks
Delivery: FOB: DESTINATION
Additional Notes:
1. All quotes are subject to the "Standard Terms and Conditions of
Sale."
2. Quoted shipment lead-time is based on production backlog as of

date of quotation and is subject {o change.
3. Upon order completion, immediate shipment is available plus




freight on a common carrier. Unless otherwise specified, freight
on units quoted is prepaid and allowed in the contiguous US on
our next available truck going to your area.

4, Quoted units are subject to prior sale and results of final test.
5. Pricing is valid for 30 days from date of quote.

If you have any questions or need any additional information please call me at 605-684-2107. You
may also email me at gary@trelectric.com.

Sincerely,
Gary Bowen
Sales Representative




36 MONTHS
s 100%
‘B E K Guarantee
SUPPLY COMPANY INCORPORATED
BOX 180, COLMAN, SOUTH DAKOTA 57017
“THE TRANSFORMER PEOPLE"

GUARANTEE

ALL T&R TRANSFORMERS ARE GUARANTEED TO BE FREE FROM DEFECTS IN

WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS FOR 36 MONTHS UNDER NORMAL USE OR
SERVICE ; THAT NORMAL USE OR SERVICE DOES NOT INCLUDE ABNORMAL

STRESSES OR STRESS FROM SUCH CAUSES AS INCORRECT PRIMARY VOLTAGE,
FREQUENCY OR IMPROPER LOAD.

We are not responsible for consequential losses or damages outside of this equipment nor for any repairs or
replacements made by athers without our written authorization. Should any unit fail within 36 months, we will
either repair or replace the transformer or refund your money at our option.

Excluded under this guarantee are all newly-manufactured transformers and all transformers rebuilt by other rebuilders, in which case their
guarantee will prevail.

(605) 534-3555

(800) 843-7994
FAX: (605) 534-3861
E-MAIL: t-r@t-

This guaraniee is expressiy in lieu of other guarantees.




T&R Eketrk Szpply Ca, Iac
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE
Effective Date: 12 huiy 2313

ANY TERM, COXDITION AND/OR PROVISION (HEREAFTER TERMS) OF BUYER'S ORDER WEICH IS IN ARY WAY TNCORSISTENT WITH OR T ANDITION TO THESE TERMS SHALL NOT BE APPLICABLY HFRETO GR BIKDING UPON

SELLER IF BUYER OBJECTS TO ANY CORDIT JONS HEREIN, SUCH OBIECT ION MUST BE IN WRITING AND RECEIVED BY THE SF1IER AT THE ADDRESS STATFI) ON THE FACE HERECF FRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF

PERFOIMANCE BY SELLER RETENTION BY BUYER OF ANY ITFMS DELIVERED BY SELLER HEREUNDER SHALL HE CONCLUSIVELY DEEMED ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS HERECGF, SELLER'S FAILURE TO ORJECT TO TERMS

CONTATNED IN ANY COMMUNICATION FROM BUYER WILL KCT BE A WAIVER OF THE TERMS HFREOT.

1. Applicatie Term and Conditioas
The pachese by Custeawr of the matetis), eqegerent, compunest(y), produty), sxpes, poods and docmmenistion
(receinafier the “Probat) is expresshy powreed by these Terms aod Coaditiord of Sk, snd ONLY these Temms ead
Conditeas of Sal, tnless specifically agreed o othernise in writing by T&R Ekvuic Supply Co, Iee. (TER")

This sa% is evpressly comditinosd tpea Customer’s seceptance of the terms and conditions stated belaw, 1 nod previcasdy
giver, Qustomer's payrwnt or sodeptance of Produst, whickever ociurs fies, is ceoshesive to this aeceptance,

L Qectaticas
Each qatatica is valid for ity (30) days from fts iseue date weless otberw fse aved in the quotation, of reveked price b the
isstnee of Castianat™s purehase coder.

3 Prives

Frices aze sodject 1o change withort potice. Uholess otherwise specified, prices wili be the prices in effect at the time of
writien ender sckmndedzemend by TRR sobject to afjistment for sshsoqumt chirges dvocted by he Custocenr 2adfor
mrually agreed upon escititioa froesle  Prives will inclnde freight prepaid sad allowed to the accessihle common earrisr
pind pasgest the first destination designmied by the Custemr inthe Forty-cight contigaaus Urited S on the pevt madlalle
TER tuck delivering to the Customer's area, wiess imnediate shippng s reqinsd by Customer which charges woold o
be included in eriginal guice, Cussymer st give al least fwo weeks potice 2 TER in the event witness tests are requered.
Charges for said tests witl be oo bess than §1,000 per day.

Pallets are pt includied in the price of quite and pead to be ragquested seperately. In the event of a pries charge, the elfective
dase of tha change will b the date shown eathe revissd quatstion Where 8 pice change is mads by Ketter, fax, or emmil,
effective dute may be given as part of the anvermiement Pallets and eqort pecioging peovided by TER will oot be
Frmigted and any special rerests st be mads o advance, snd may oot be avaitabts tiegh T&R

4. Tazes
The grice quoted by T&R for the Frodnt does pot mchade any Federal, state, or bacal preperty, Hoeemse, privikege, sabe, wee,
excise, gross receipts, o other Bhe taves nhich may now of bereafler be gpplicatle. Paymect by T&R of any sach taxes shall
be for the pocvurd of the Customer, and shall be fmmedianly reimbresd by Cusdiaer to TAR,

Where Costomer, e the end-user, destinathen 15 boaed cutside of the United States, the Costorr shall pay afl
customs, drdies, and tocal costoms broker fres o conts (ULS. endfed pwoa15.8), s well as o1 cther rionULS, taxes of
eny type whatsmvee,

5 Terms of Payment
Payment teams aee thinty (30) calendar days fromibe data of imrdoe untess otherwise specifiad 3 writing.

¥ im the judzrerd of TER, the finasciad oondition of the Costomer al eny Gme pricr to shipoect §s ressomatly calkd ity
question, thea TAR may regdre paymerd in sdhass o caacel withort pry liability of obhigation, any emtstandng ender,
wherenpon TAR shall be extitled 1o reveive ressonskle cancellation charges.

I paymazrss sre ot made when duz, Qustaiir shall [y, in additon 4 £y overdnz pemaltics, a Jate charge equl &5 the
greater of 1 17% per morrh eomidative oo principal outstand’rg snd prioe sssessed lete chasges, ot the Fghest epplicalle rate
albyued by law ca o7l such overdue amonnds.

&, DsExery/Shipment
Unkess ctherwise specified, all Poodiocts ace skspped F.ORB. Codman, 8D Prrpuid 2ad Albswed for net faveke valoss of
$1000.00 o masre. Orders Iess tan $1,000.00 net involoe veboe are Shipped F.OB Codman, SD Prepaid and Added F.ORB.
oiessitle COMTTIN RarTier odnk Tearest firsl destimation dasigmated by the Custenrer n the Friyeight contigeom Urited
States on the et svailalle contracted corrier trock delivering to the Customet's arzs, anless mmmediae shippueg is required
by Costomer which ehrirges weatd nod ke inchedad in etiginal quate, freight prepeid

Cartzge ($tore Door Delivery): Treasporation charges incumed from (he nesred sidessitle common cumise poat 1 fol
destiration er to shipside (im case of shipmers 1 ULS. possesshins) are the respoasttiity of the Costivner tless the common
carrier fornishes stote deinery at o evtra charge.

Method of Shipeoent  Shipping dates ctcmingd i gaxations are pppromimat 24 e hased ca receipt of comglete
informatia with the order 1f drawing spproval is required, drawings meast be retumed 2nd rekased 12 produstion within
formteen days, in writing by fecsimile or First Class Mall  Upom zelease fo production, stipmeed date will be determined by
work Joad Jevel at the time of release 20d may o4 be the sume 24 presionly quated  An ackmowledgement shipmecd data
will te provided vpon regaest of the Costomer.  TER will determine the point of erigie of shipment, the meibad of
transpartation, and the reting of shiprend. Costomiers ragiving shépment by 2 methad or routing other than that of T&R's
sefection will be billed any exiess o premiton in trampeatatioa charges.

Any charges for special services, inchifing but rat fimited to, special train, Bgkterage, comrdimited amival times of mdtiple
trueks or other modes of comveyance, consttiag ¢ repair of toospertatica faoidies will be paid o rstmbersed by the
Customer.

Custoener PiekUp: Mo ellowance wifl be made in liew of trarsportazsion if the Custornes sicigis sipmect at the factogy, or
the waehowse, of frefght faticn

Custamer expressly conserts that Will-Calf Orders (2 g onders for whith the Custmer eleets w2 amange for treaspiataticg)
shall be inveated ca the Liter of the conteetmally okrondadged shipmert dute or of the ol roduct completion. T&R
shatl pot be respensible inany way for Custamer's inabdlity & secire temely ua_r.s,mmﬁm o eny other delay by Customer
whatseever,  Any spplicatle storage charges of completed products shall be o escendancs with Sectivn 17 (Delayed
Skipment) hesein

Shiprrerd Damage: Ewcept i the evect of F.OB. Destimatian shprne st TAR will nd participess in eny seitkeccect of chims
for conceakad or other shipmens Samage. When shipmant has been madz on en FOB. Destinatiza hasis, the Customer ot
wipack irmmedistely and, if demmage fs discovered, must

i Motmeve lb:pm!xr fromn the point of evamnation,

1. Retain shppng container end packing moterial (Lflpphc.}\e),

fi Metify the earier of say apparent damnge in wiiting oo £amis's
detivery reotipt and reqaest carties o make an ingection;

v, Motify TER within 72 ks of detnery, and,

V. Send TRR & copy of the carrier’s inspection report.

Trpostion and Aceeptarce: Product wlll be deerned aovepted by the Customar upon seceipt. Shoutd the product nit coagply
with technical specifications, Costemer rast potify T&R i wriing, upom Brenediate recapt and off-loading of any alleged
l;n.\n:(\mplmu.‘% o withir two () cakoler d3y3. Any notification of alkeped moncemphance md cite exch specification
criteris that is alleged 10 e mroconghiant, with evideree of he deviation. Comraction of 2y confmmed ressomplitne ghall
b2 in poosrdhnce with TER'S obdizatiecs ax defived fa Section 8 {Warardy) betain

7 Force Majeare

T&R shy!l o be Jalde for failare to perform or for deliy i1 performence dus 1o 1oy cawse beyond its reasonabde control,
fretofng tut ot limitad to: zots of God, acts or oasssions which are subtartially atiribetable o the Customar, mresally
savere or harsh weather condtiong, Fie; flood, bomisanes, tomedoes, striles or oty Lebor difficudties; any ect oo failwee to
zat o delny in 2cting en the pant of any goverreenni] swherily of ennty, including the issmnce of or fattare 1o issue
fovemminl dacishons, Chioges [ W, ots: epidrmcs, querantine restrictions, nan, inssrection o ik sxts of & eivil er
litary antherity, litke end enviroamerda) favaes; enburgees, frel o eneogy shortage; Bockeges, ransportatica deliys oo

eocklenty, frablay o obéain nevessay labuy, matens] o moeafactring facllifies from wmal sorrces; delsys of
muboeciractars.

Tntke event of delay in parfermanse dae o any sxch camse, the dete of stepment of tims for compieting will be evtended by s
gerind of tirme equal b the greater of (7) the fime ressmubly ecessary to overoome e effect of such delay, or () the bime
equal ta the periad of B delay.

& WARRANTY
All TER Trazaforzoers ar¢ guuarcesd for the Tergth of fime, a5 shted in the Custearer qunte, 0 he fres from defects m
wrsiarandip and materials onder normral sz or service; that nammal we of sinvice doss not imchade shoormal stresses or
stress from such causes a3 inocaredt primary voltege, frequency or improper overlazd

T&R is et respeasitle for comseqantin] Josses o drmages outside of the Prodact or for any repairs of replecemect mads by
ethers withot TAR's wiitten svhorization. Shoudd any tedt fxil withins (he eppbicably time periad of (he wamarty, TRR will
eithet repistr of teplace the wansformer, of refimd the Costomer's ey, 2t TER s option.

Excloded from wamanty are all newly menufzatued transformens and a1t trassformens rebult by other rebualdens, in which
case thew warandy will peevail

THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY IMN L1IEU OF OTHER WARRANIIES. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES WHICIL
BXTENDBEYONE THE DESCRIPTION ON THE FACE HEREOS.

3. Lizitatioa of Liability
The tota], azgregate, and corrrhative HahiMy of T&R (inchudng hereafier for purposes of this Section its alfifiates, parent
commpany, shasehoess, sbwidiaries, oificers, dreciors, employees, agerts, assigns arad their respective predocessars and
mvessirs) o et Oustamar, whrither by fsderziity, of in eoetrect, gmarinty, toed (eheding negligence sndie strict Latdity),
by shtre, of tnder any other fegal (heory chall m no event excead thal purchase order price of the secific Product in
qazstion

Unider m circomstances shall TR be lishle by Customer, whether by indemnity, or in coctract, goan=ty, tort {nclodng
eglipence endbor stict Hebility), by statcfe or wmder any other legal thocey for any spovial, inciderzal, inbred or
comsaprential demages o brssss of any manare, even if ¢omtotnsg has ahised TAR in pdvance of the possitility of auh
demrages

Under o circmstanegs shali TER be Lishl 1o Costoaer, whatber by indetrvaty, or 1 contrast, giaeasty, tort {inchading
reglipence amdlor stricl Kabihity) by statute, or ender any other kgal theary for bass of profi, bass of production, bass of
eactract, boss of reverne, Loss of wse, cost of repfacsment poner of taporary eqipawet (T tuding ed¥tiond equmses
motred in weng esisting fcmhites), cLims o denages of Cunomer's oustiarets, oo of meaey, bass of investment
CPPOLtrETY; b of bosiness opportunity; increased opemting costs, fnencing costs, of governament fines, penaliies of sms
a2, even if Customer bas sdvised T&R in ehvance of the posslity of such econmmic o financial losses.

The remades of the Onstomer set forh berein are ecchasie with respect to the Product and cheds anything dane in
eocnnctian with the Prodact, sach as the performance of breach thereof, ¢ from the mansfectee, sale, repalr of 1eplacement,
delivery, resale, o use of the Prodoct; for the avoidance of doubt, the wonal, agae, and cumilative batehity of T&R
whether 1 coctrect, by bt (nclnding neglipence andhy strict Hability), irdemnity, gusrerty, by statvte, of under any other
kegal theory for sny matter relating tr the Product, shall et etceed the purchase order prize of the Prodmot

Uneder 0o circunstarces shall TER be Hable 1 Costomer for purztive demages, nor may any aritrator(s) or comrt of bw
award paitive demapes againg TRR

No sction, repacdiess of form, arising ot of the transaption nnder this corfrat may be heomght by the Costomer more than,
aaz (1) year after the causs of action has eocurred T&R sholl be erritied to the paywmees of its ativmey's fees 2ol exsts inthe
everd that T&R is forved to defend a kel ection by Customer whoth claim(s) is eovered andfor prectuded by this Sactioa 9
(it of Liabilig)

16, InteBectnad Progerty
The sale by TAR of the prodact ocdered berernder duoes pot oomey o grach license, exqwess o fmphed, 1o Qustomer
regending eny of TAR's telbectal property, mchuding bt ned Lncited 1o, patents, copyrighty, redemakis, trade secrets,
desigrs, artntek or other proprictary rights, exoept Customer's eoa-exibusive right to wse soch intelkectal property sokely for
e purpose of sod caly o the exwend pecessary for, w2 of the Prodwct prckased hetennder in ecodance mith TAR's
published specifications or usad dacurmentition

11 Delay Dammages
To the exterd that T&R s resporsitle for any debays in its performcee tnder these Terms and Conditions of Sale with
respevt 1 mitetag the fisl stoponend Jate for the Proudact, ity otal liabilty for sch performence delay 1o the Qustomer shal]
Fot excesd an amoret gl to $% of the vatne of the mivihal niject Prebist order, Compensation foe Customer's delyy
demiges (1o event exceedng the 5% cop) will represen the full 2ad firal satisfaction of TER's Yabdhly for delay.
Cuostomer shall be oblizated to sbstintiate tmeigh sppropriate and relistde dacirments its dimuges farumed oo sooerd of
tha late parformance of TAR. Custeaner's performance delay damigen shatl net be recovered for any interme Eate mikestone
o deliveratles by TER, snd covers caly the finad stipoert of the Product Any emomnts payatde to Customer by T&R
beveunder shall be incloded as part of 1he tt2), spgaepate Babitity cap sat fxth in Sacton 9 (Limdtetion of Listahity} herein
Castomer shall w2 all raasovatles effoats b metigads the effect of any delsy casad by TAR

Undér oy cfreumpsrances sthall TER be hatde for Lite shitenent damages to Oustismer whers sach 1 shaperernt Fas been

camsd by 8 forcs malme evert a3 dafined ) Section 7 (Foree Mrind) berein, 2 suspenshon of the nerk, a change erder ar
m\!u;\.sho-a 5 e Proskoct requested by Custoener, or any other ect or omdssion of e Custonrer, or enduser, which Tas
coggrituad to or rescted in ke delay question

1L Tramber
In the esent Qustormer tramsfers to & tnd panty the Prodsct o any 1ight of incecest thereln, Customr 8 grees 9 inkonify,
defend prad bold TRR barmhess from eny ard all ability of T&R 15 such trersferes or any sahwequerd tronsferea in excess of
what T&R's Baebality socdd have been if such traraferee Fad been boond by Siese Terms and Contions of Sa¥ inths same
mirne iy Custmer,

13, Titk - Rlskef Lows
Oramership or kgl tide o the Prodat sobd by TER 6 Oustoeey sholl pess to the Qustomer at the exrliss of invoking date o
shiprent date. Riskof Joss of the Provhact, or zny pert of the same, shall also pass ty the Custamer at the exrdier of inveicing
date or shoprrert date,

Until sach tima as the Customer bas paid T&R the full value of the purvhase ender price, Custemer egrees by perform all zcts
whith may be necessary to predect and bobs the Prodact free of claima, demueds, lisns, o1 ecsamdoanies, o, diematively,
fmmsure @ Froduct for its full replacemesd valas st Customer’s onn expense with TER beirg included ander any sach policy
as an sdfithanal insared and'er By the extert that Curtomer ones TER eny amziet under e purchase endes, beling the
proveads of eny insmance ¢laim in respect of the Prodsctin trust for TRR

Wikt prejudics k2 any cther remady o right thet T&R may fegally have, if Customer fails to timely pay aft amserts oned
wder the pahase arder for the Product, TER may ot eay lime 124 possessiao of (e Prodhst debivered 1 Customer and seli
& If T&R 1akes possession of the Frodt sod sells it, Customay cootimnes 10 be liabds to TER for an amount aqat 1o the
azgrepate of the urpuid amounts and eosts and expenses incured by TER in taking possessiha of, tranaporting, stering, and
selling the Frodact kst an pmont eqaal 1 the procesd of the sale

10




If ey amostet owed vader e rarcbass crder is oot paid fmety by he Custamer, the Custemet bereby drrevorably autborizes
T&R or its agerds 69 enter any premises owned, keasad, or etherwise oocugied by Casbamer for e prrpie of nlang
passession of the Prodact. Tie Qustomir meast provide TER with #0e2ss t all information necessary 3 enere comphisnce
with this Seetica |3 (Titk: —risk of Lesy)

. Coutoaed Variathons

Drawing Approval and Charges IF Castorr approval of dravvings is reqaived, such review, commed, or approval mast b
reccined by T&R m Liter than farrteen (14) catendr days after sobamittal of drawings by T&R to Cimvsierier, iming 2 begn
wisen Lhe draswinigs bave been recefved and ppproved Ty TER. I efther 5 Costomer Fathy 19 comply with this fourtesn-day
(14-is) Himeliness of review TeqAremerts o the fredist Bas rest boen relensed 1 production witn vty (30) ealend days
of nritien ordes ackmovledzememt by TER, whichever oo Litet, the order shall be smiject 5 reoegotistion of price and
shipment tems. Whete Customer’s spevifications are red sufficierely detsilod, T&R reserves the right to desiga th Produst
in zccordence with T&R's best pro'hmmljudg-r.ﬂ.t and good comamerial prectivds. 1F 2l any tme the Qusverar makes
chenges t the contrent desizn a5 eoverad bs Cusiomers spacifications, s cortract shall be subect by renegotiation of the
price benmns £nd date of shipment to reasccbly cover any #4&tieal eosts 2] commitments oocasiaed by the chungs

Ccders plecad Oa Hald by Cussomer: An ceder placad on hold by the Castomer for any reasea, or by T&RR nhile awaiting
paymert of overdne imuices, will be Leben et of the prodmticn scheddle. 1Fwben the bl is rrooved, the erder will be
rescheduled from that sbsaqoend releuse date ot (he then prevaling keddone, Writkea rotiie will be seot 1 the Customer
eoafirming the bold styres upon request of the Customer.

Change Orders by Customers Change enders subarittsd by the Qustomer for previonsly schmowledged purchase enders ere
wigect 1o pddithiral chasges Changes b purchase ecders that Bave md been released for prodosticn are schedt Lo price
edustments for the costs of techrdeal and sdainistrative servids, a5 well as applivable matwrdsl sodir reﬂxhng costs
(bngex made to prrchase onders that have alresdy been refeased 13 prodistion, Are stiact b thess sama price tmerty
phus $500 per ehnze Tor prodtion dimuption and mefficiercy couts. Lesi-ime exteniom may renst deperding upen (e
nature of the chanze(s)

Crstomar Srpphod Material Frem time to time, TER may agree o install costomer supplicd materizl Such sgrvemseds et
siect ta the folbving stipudationy;

0 T&R will not be el respoasible for delays in shipenent emsad by delayy in ihe recepl of Custymer spphied muterial
Stich deliys will te sritdect b posshle prics adfustments dus bo Cussomi induzed delays and disrgptions

(i) Customer s responsitle for syplyizg TR with oll sppiiatie fectrics) daty 2nd dranings (i sefficient detail as
determined by T&R) at tire of cedex entry, 50 23 40 ensra that thz Prodit design can be mads ¢y ecovarmedate form, fit,
fuzstion, and interface nith Customer supphied material

(i} Errors by the Custoarer tr spply the comect muerial per the detailed tecknical dua svyptied of time of erder, may resit
indelays in shiprent and paice afwtments

T&R will Fat b bsld respomsitds for Custerner wppliod matariad thet is received damnged jn shpmert. Insuch o eten,
delays in shépment may resct and will be sabject t» prive sfostmats.

Service Condtions The biy=aHfilied bram former prodacts supytied by TAR will be suitab for operation witkin the *usuel
semvize conditivas™ as defined i TREE Stinderd C37.12.00, Seition 4.1, Specifically, these wonl senvice eonditions mnde
ke follawing

(1 The trarstormer is desigoed for sep doun duty.

(i) The transforrner is designad for peration ot the 1eted KVA, 21 3300 Feet akitade, withomt evceeding tarperatme Bmits,
provided the averape kmpenztore of the ambiert 2 does oot encead the Emits as lised below. The diclectric strergthof the
brashiags and amestors will be sritabis by aliow satisfectiay operation at 3300 feet

(i) The muxirmum tergeratee of the ambient air shotd nat exceed 40 degree € and the aversge temperatns of the ambiand
&ir, for 2ny 24 b periced, theadd oot exeeed 30 degres C.

(tv) The irget vedage when apphind £ any rated tp, of razed fraquency, shoudd mit resnlt in en ot vohage mresta thet
1084 at 1o Lowd, and 105% et razed c.at;ul-u«i The otegeat keand pover faoton minst be 806 or better,

(+) When cousinl er special senice conBitions, wuch as damging or explesive vapers, sbooamal Vibratons, shocks,
tragsportations, siorage somibiame, poor wase form, uoholaned voltage, or plasned regatar shart dircuits exisl, or servies
enaditioas cshar than these described in (1), (), (i), 2nd (1) just above, ftis the responstdlity of the prockassr to bring these
conEtions 1 the attertizn of TER a1 the Bm: a gaation is 1equerad by the Customer from TRR

Faitre by Customer b exyressly provide advance patice 1o T&R of &y wwsita] of special servive oonditions which do ot
rmect the above may renher ibe prodoces warenty il and veid

15 Termlastiza by Castomwr
Any order or cordract may be cancelid by the purchuser ocly by wiiten mtice and opoo paymsnt of reaseasble charges
tased upoa the following

A Where order is in provess, bt prodact s med relessed foe masmfactore, cencallation charges shall ba the cost of materals
that are 5 wseable o ¢2a1 ondets, i 2076 of Prodmet price.

B. Where coder is in process with productia spaet resenved andmatenials betng readeed for sssembly:

Engineering Complete . . 1533 of prodnat price
Purchasing Compiste . - 534 of produst price:
Material RecehvedinHomse . ... 755'-0{[\1’@&(;(1}3

Witkia six (6) weeks of scknowledped date of shipmant . .
1003 of provkeet price

Any Customer lerminating of canseling an order in eccordence with Ihe shove kermimatian schedale shall be fofly boeed and
obligatad to TER m ascardance with these Termi snd Condifines of Sake o pay the above ggreed trmination price within
thirty (30) calendar days of sh termination or candellation nntice,

1£. Saspemsion by Customer
Any ender beld or delayed or rescheduled at the requtst of the Cstomes nill te p.4gect 10 the prives and confifions of sk in
effect o1 the time of the redtaes of the bo of the reschedte. Any sich ender beld or delayed beyond thinty (30) calendar
days will be treatsd as a Customer bermiration

17, Dulayed ShippeatSlorage
Whea the Prodt is ready for shiprment and s-hqmeﬂ carmt e made bocamse of reasons beyend TER's conirol, TAR shall
submit 2n invedee for the Pradut duz snd payable in exendinee with the agreed paywwed terms 2nd shall, ipon writlen
Btize b the Custornes, stace such prodcts In sach evect, the folloming condtions thall apply.

Neodwiihstenting Sectian 13 (Tite - 1isk of Loss) hercin, risk of Iass of the Product thal) pass t the Costoarer upia moving
such Prodsct 4> sborage.

All expenes inconed by TR in conmectian with the staage of Prodacts, inshuidng denmrmage, the cost of preparation for
starage, storzge charges, insmance, el hendlng charges stall be pajatde by the Castivmer upoa submissina of tnvedees by
T&R

T&R may, af jts” soke discretions, szree 10 $5iee cotrpitted weits for 2 mavimren of tno (2) wecks st mo edditionsl charge ca
4 space available hasis, with the tnderstrndng end (he beredy expressed consent of the Customear that the daze of invedee will
ba the date that the produst was crigirally schadnled o ship and that paymeed trms will et be charged After schituo (2)
week timzframe, & starage change of 5250 ger Prodist per week, o part thereof, will be assessed and Blled monthly to the
Cusbreoer,

18 Caaeflafion by TER
T&R shalt fave the rigH to canced at eny time by written sotice far any material breach of these Tenms aod Condtions of
Sake by Customer,

19, Retwralsg of Product
Prodat may not be retomed sveapt with the prior written egrevmett of TAR end sthjevt 5 tha terms specified thezein by
T&R

19, Prodwid Noteds
Customur shall provide te end-mser (inclmimg its emphoyees) of the Product with oIt TAR supplisd Prodhset end patent
Fotioes, Wamings, metructions, recommendations end simifar materialy Under e ciroumstances shall Costicst of the end-
user of the Pradact remave 2oy soeh informutisn which may be alfived o the Frodnst of fo the related materials shizped with
2 Froduct

21. United States Expial Coatrols
Customey sekuwywledpes Gt the Produt and plf doqurnertstion 1l ether techaical informution deliverad parsmst o these
Terms end Condnions of Sake are stject 1o eaport conirols usder US, laws, incladng but pot Emited to e Egeat

Administratica A and the regpulatins precriziied teretd, Customer Bgrees 1 strictly comply with afl fegsl regrrements
estettished Trder fhess cartrols and to cooparsss Fdly with T&R in any official er veificil snit or bpection that relaics
B these cantrols. Customer shall ot export, reewpast, dhvert, of Leosfor dizectly or indmectly, G Prodwt ol 2l
dicvrnenration of other techaieal infermation dedivered prrsant to these Terms and Condition of Sale Uy ey comniry, or o
the naticoals of ey sxch counry, whish the US. goerroweed delermizes is & cowrtry 1 which swch expodt, reevpott,
dversion, ramsfer or disclarae @ resticted  Any breach of this provision will be comsidired o maietial bresch of these
Terms sl Cossditions of Sake and Costorrer will be ebliz2?ed o defend, indermify (m.Iuﬁ}g all attormeys feen and costs)
and bold harmiless T&R (melodrg off afiibates, sherebobien(s), drectars, officsrs, employees, and sgents) from any teesch
of this paragreph by Costomer. The pafoomence of TEAR @ delivering the Product 10 Cussies 13 eonditionsd upen the
ettyiment of all regoxad heenses

21 Testing and Acceplande of Goods
Testina of the Prodtat bfece shipmert is carried et 1 eccondmes with TER's peutice fucteqy test procedores. Upan the
Qustammes's regaest, TER shall provide test repots for the Profact Itk evend Quatoquer réquests tefing ofber then TAR™s
stndend fopiny tests mdiol requasts Witness restirg aadlr inspections, Cosborner shall pay for afl such sdditimal testing,
witness costs, and sy end all associated charges

3, Seseralllity
Shaald eny provision of thess Terms and Conditices of Sake be formd to be i vicktion of Law, the comainder of these Terms
and Conditions of Sad¢ shall he in full force &) effect

2. No Asigament
Neither these Terms end Cenditens of Sak nor eny rights, icerest of benefits of Costomer brrovmder may be essgred by
Costormer to 2ny other parly without the prior written coasent of TERR.

25 Chodoe of Lawn/ Venwoifurbsdk tieafAgree ot ¢ Artrasion
The vatidty, performinee, comstruetion, and effect of 20y porchase order which is sdjoct 1o thesz Tenms and Conlitiaos of
Sale shall be governzd by the laws of the Stawe of Sceath Dalts, withoe regand v its choice of law nes of thyse of any other
Jurdshitka

I the event of any dispuee anising out of o in coonectian swith the prestnt prodat eode, the puties shall aterrgt in goad
faith & resalve all dispares procegaly by pegetiarion as follows  Any porty may give the ether porty written oetice of say
dispute not resahvad in the eenral conrse of bsess. Frevotives of both parties at kevels ens Level sbove the perscane] whe
have previcasly been fmolved in the dismte shall meet o2 a rnaally scceplable thne and plsce within ten {10) Tesiness days.
efer Jelivery of such pitice, and thereatier a5 often as they reasocably deem mecessary, 10 exchange relevant irformation and
to atberrt by resadve the dhapute. IF (e matter has not een resofved within thirty (30) calandar days from the referral of the
Espute to serivr everuthes or if m maeting of senior ¢xendtives has ken place niten Afieen (15) cakradar days after sxch
refemal, sitker gorty may initiate medistion a3 peovided bereimafter. If a negotiator intends to be sevormended at 2 meeting
by =0 attorrey, the cther pepedizsie sholl Yo given at beast theee {3) Tusiness days potice of such istection and may abo be
soecroparded by mn attorney. All pegetietions parsmact t this Section are omfidersial and shall be freated a3 compromess
end setileinenst negatiations for poses of the Federal Rubes of Evidence ard state rutes of evidence

In ihe esert thal any dispute arisng ot of o relsting by these Terms end Coosftioss of Sake is oot resadved in ecoordance
with the jrocedives establishad fost above, soch dispree shall ba suhaitted ty prisate, nonEmding medintion as jeovided for
below, befoce resarting to htigatien or some ether Espzte resolmtion procedme,

Any gonty to 8 Chim may initiste madistion by filing a nriten reqnuesl for mediation puruant o these roles. A request for
maEstion shall contain a beiel staterent of the natuee of the Clim andthe names, addresses, and teleptemt wabers of thise
who will represent the parly, if any, in e mediation Upono recelpt of & request for seedisticn, the partres shall agree ca a
gukfied mediatot to sarve. Nowmally, a singhs medtator will be appoirted orbess the parties agree ezherwise, If the ouire of
the Claim s highly techorics), the parties shall atfermpd to choose a mediator(s) who has e xpertise in the ares of dispute.

Mo persoa shall serve 85 a maEator in pay clain in which that person bhas any fimancil or personal inferest in the et of the
medistian, exeept by the waitten coment of all purtics. Prior 4 sccepling an appointmart, the rospective mokator shall
dselose any chvomsterce Bely w2 oreate a presuoption of bas or prevent & proayd mivting with the parties, Upoa recegt
of such ieformation, the paries shall replaca the medstor ar waisve any cbjection bo the madiater. I ey medistar shall
become unwilling er unzhle 1 serve, the parties shall appoint sncther mediator. Any perty may be reysesenied by persoms of
the party’s chodce. The nomes and sdbesses of such persoms shall be cororounicated in wiitng #2 e other party,

The medator shall fix the date and the time of esch medation sessea The medistica shall te held ot a convenient location
aareestie by the medistor and the pustics, as tke medatr shall determine. At least fifteen (15} days grier & e first
seheduded medtion sessivn, each party sbatl provide the madistor with 2 bricf mermonandm setting forth its pasiton with
regard to the issuzs that noed 62 be resobved with appropriste refererats to e poticss of the Agreement o Addendom
which may be inissne. The meEator does oot have the autbeity b inpos & setifement oo the partics Tug will atterrgt o Belp
them reach & satisfaetony resalutiva of te Claim The mevdzaser I avrharized to condot jeint snd seporate meedings with the
pasties and b9 ke oral and it recommendations for setemerd Whenever pecessiry, B medisti may also obain
expert sdvice comcerrdng tecknical aspects of the Claim, provided thal the parties agre and asvame the expenses of chtaisng
such advice.  Amangements for obtaiving sach ahvice sholl be mudk by the medistir of the pagties, as tha medtasor shail
determwéne, WMeFatizg sessiot arg private. The parties and thedr representstives may stiend medistion sessiors. Other
persoms may tiend ealy with the permissiza of the parties and with (ke coasert of the medator,

Coafidertial infermation dEsitosad to 8 maaiog by the parties or by witnesses in the course of the mediation shall £t e
dinudzed by the medatr. Al recordy, reports, oo ot dacoments reseived by a mediator whilt serving inthel capacity shall
be confidentit? The mediassr shall mt be compelled 1o divlae snch tecieds of B tsify in regard 5 the medistion in any
sdvessary procesding of faticial fonm

The parties shall maintain the confidersiabity of the mediztion and shall not 8y oo, of Ertroduce a5 evidence in any erbitral,
judists), of other proveeding

() views exgressad or sizggesthons meds by another paaty with respect § a possle settfemnerd of the Claim;

(b} sdrissions made by evdbet party in the coanse of the meFation peoceadings,

() groposals mede of views evpressad by the madtstor; or

(d) bz fact that another party hed er had ot indoated wiltingmess 1 accept 8 proposal for settzment made by the madistor.

There shati e no stenngraphic recand of the modiation provess
The mediation shall be terminaied:

(8) by the execttion of a sctikrnend agreement by the jasties;
(0) by @ wimea dechirathza of the redhator to the ¢ fiect that further efforts ot mediation ere 29 langer werthubile, oo
(€} by a written declaraticn of a party or partizs to the ¢ffect that the medutisn proceedngs are tmizated,

No mediator shall be 2 necesery party in jodivial proceedings releting s the madiation, nor shall any modiazor be et 13
£ny party for aay actor omdssion i conntetion with any medieation coorbaoted vauder these redes

The medistor thalk interpeet s apply these rekes insafer 23 they refate o th mediasor's dutics and respomsitilitics.

Ths exvpenses of nitnesses for either side shall be paid by the party prodacing sush witnesses. All oot experses of the
mediation, inchding reqzed travelicg and cther experses of the madivior and the exprases of my witness and the cost of
any proefs or exper] edhvice prodaced at the direed reguest of te medioted, sl be torre eqrally by the parties unless thay
agree ctharwiss

11




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light and Power Board
From: Scott Menhart, Manager of Telecom & Technology
Date: February 2, 2015

Subject: Replacement of AT&T PRI, DS1, and Long Distance Contracts

In June of 2014, TCL&P renewed the following three expired contracts with AT&T:
s PRI Primary phone circuit for Hastings Office: $600/month
» Long Distance —Long Distance Plan for Hastings Office: $600/year
¢ DSI - Point to point connection for the Kalkaska Combustion Turbine $530/month

During this renewal period, AT&T informed TCL&P that we would need to eventually upgrade
these contracts to move off of their antiquated technology. Recently, I have been working with
them to move forward with a Hometown recommendation a strategic planning item, and a capital
improvement item to revamp our phone system. To gain the advanced functionality that TCL&P
will need to fulfill cali routing, AT&T informed me that TCL&P should move forward with the
contract upgrades now, instead of waiting until they expire. However, I understood this to be a
reality during the initial contract signing in June and built a clause into the existing contracts to
allow for midterm replacement, waiving the typical contract adjustment fees.

I have worked through the details of the change and AT&T has provided a new single contract
that will supersede the three previous contracts. This contract will also align with the
Governmental Pricing Plan for the State of Michigan. TCL&P’s previously monthly cost for all
three contracts was an average of $1,180.00, The new rate will be a flat rate of $1,553.00 and
will give the advanced features needed to redirect calls during times of high call volumes in an
effort to mitigate busy signals. The new contract term will be for thirty-six months from the date
of execution of the contract for a total cost of $55,908.00. The three old contracts will be
terminated.

Staff recommends the Board approve execution of the contract. This item is on the Consent
Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial.  Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar
means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the

12




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY y SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A
THREE YEAR CONTRACT WITH AT&T IN THE AMOUNT OF $55,908, SUBJECT
TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL.

13




AT&T ABN EXPRESS

,
VPN VALUE BUNDLE BUDGETARY QUOTE @ atat
0
SERVICE CHARGES
Company: Traverse City Light and Power Quote Number: 0
Contact: Scott Quote Date: 01/05/15
Phone: 0 Expiration Date; 03/06/15
Address: 1131 Hastings Street Account Executive: Jay Van Duzen
City/State/Zip: Traverse city Ml 49686 Term: 36 Months

This quote is for Budgetary Purposes Only
Pricing is subject to change pending final design

Qty Description

Extended Price

Number of Sites: 2

SITE 1
1 VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth with Managed Router: 3 Mbps
1 VPN Value Bundle Calling Plan: Option 3 - 23 CC
1 VPN Value Bundle Network Security with Internet Access
AT&T ABN Express VPN Value Bundle MRC Sub-total: Site 1
*Taxes, regulatory fees, and surcharges are NOT included but will apply.
SITE 2

1 VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth with Managed Router: 3 Mbps
1 VPN Value Bundle Calling Plan: Not Applicable
1 VPN Value Bundle Network Security with Internet Access

AT&T ABN Express VPN Value Bundle MRC Sub-total: Site 2
*Taxes, regulatory fees, and surcharges are NOT included but will apply.

AT&T ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Total Monthly Recurring Charges*
*Taxes, regulatory fees, and surcharges are NOT included but will apply.

9 0 0

A 7

649.00
175.00
40.00

864.00

649.00
0.00
40.00

689.00

1,553.00

14




& atat

AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

| The rates, discounts and other provisions in this Agreement are contingent upon signature by both parties on or before March 31, 2015

For AT&T Administrative Use Only

171 Account #
MA Number:

Master Customer #
BCID #

attuid: jv8204
Doc Viewer ID:

CON#: CON150107154550,CSM150107154451

Company Name (“Customer”)

AT&T - Contact For Notices

AT&T Sales Contact - Primary Contact

Legal Name: TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & AT&T Corp Name: JAY VAN DUZEN
POWER
Street Address: 400 BOARDMAN AVE One AT&T Way Street Address: 23500 NORTHWESTERN

HWY BLDG W
City: TRAVERSE CITY, State: Ml Zip: Bedminster, NJ 07921-0752 City: SOUTHFIELD, State: Ml Zip:
496842542 48075

Tel # 2319224440

ATTN: Master Agreement Support Team: mast@att.com

Tel # 2482045881

1. SERVICES

AGREEMENT TERMS

e VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth with
Managed Router

Services in ABN Express VPN Value Bundle

Service Publication

Location

e VPN Value Bundle Calling Plan

o  AT&T Business in a Box® Service

AT&T Business Network Service

Internet Access (‘Network Security’)

o VPN Value Bundle Network Security with

(see ABN Express VPN Value Bundle)

o ATATIP Toll-Free

http:/lservicequidenew.att.com/sa_flashPlayerPage/ABN

e ATAT Toll-Free Advanced Features

AT&T Business Network Service
(see Toll-Free Advanced Features)

2. AGREEMENT TERM AND EFFECTIVE DATES OF RATES

Term

3 years

Term Start Date

First day of first full billing cycle following implementation of this Agreement in AT&T's billing system

Effective Date of Rates and Discounts

Following implementation of this Agreement in AT&T's billing system

Auto-Renewal Period(s)

Month-to-month, unless either party terminates via written notice to the other party giving at least ninety (90)
days prior to the expiration date of Initial Term or then-current Auto-Renewal Period. Each party waives any
right to receive notice prior to any such automatic extension.

3. MARC AND MARC-ELIGIBLE CHARGES

| Not Applicable

4. WAIVERS, MINIMUM PAYMENT PERIOD AND CREDITS

4.1 Waivers

Charges Waived

Minimum Retention Period

Specified in the Service Guide for ABN Express VPN Value Bundle

12 Months

Doc |D: ABN63650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm

V11 -09/12/2014

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information

Page 1 of 7

15




& atat

AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

e  ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth with Managed Router
e ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Network Security with Internet Access

Monthly Recurring Charge per Dialed Toll-Free number for AT&T Toll-Free Advanced N/A
Features (Classic)-Feature Package II-Routing Plan Option
Monthly Charges incurred during the 7th month of the Initial Term for the following: N/A

4.2 Minimum Payment Period for Wireline Services

Service Components Percent of Monthly Service Fees Due Upon Termination Minimum Payment Period
Prior to Completion of Minimum Payment Period per Service Component
All Service Components 50% 12 months
5. RATES (PRICES) FOR WIRELINE SERVICES
5.1 AT&T ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth
VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth ; . : VPN Value Bundle Network
7 with Managed Router VEN Valua Bundla With or Wiihout Calliig Flan Security with Internet Access*
: - Monthly Charge Monthly Charge
Option Acc?ess Method# Bandwidth Per Port Per Site Per Site
A T-1# 1.5 Mbps $399.00 $25.00
B 2XT-1# 3 Mbps $649.00 $40.00
C 4xT-1# 6 Mbps $1,299.00 $65.00
D Ethernet — Switched** | 10 Mbps $1,299.00 $95.00
B Ethernet — Switched? 20 Mbps L $500.00 $140.00
E2 Ethernet - Switched®* | 20 Mbps $1,599.00 $140.00
F Ethernet — Switched™ | 50 Mbps $2,199.00 $340.00
G Ethernet — Switched®* | 100 Mbps $2,999.00 $675.00

miles

*Optional, if ordered, Service must be used at each Customer Site with VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth
**Rate applies only to one ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Bandwidth Ethernet-Switched 20 Mbps in an AT&T ILEC Area selected by Customer that is
ordered between the Term Start Date and 05/31/15

#For Locations in AT&T ILEC Areas, rate excludes T1 Access Channels over 50 miles from Customer Site to the AT&T POP; and for Locations outside the
AT&T ILEC Areas, rate excludes T1 or Ethernet Access Channels over 25 miles from Customer Site to the AT&T POP
+ for Ethernet locations provided by the underlying access providers as described in the Service Guide for Price Bands C and D there is no limitation on

5.2 AT&T ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Calling Plan

VPN Value Bundle Calling Plan Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4* Option 5*
Monthly Charge $50.00 $100.00 $175.00 $350.00 $700.00
IP Local and IP Long Distance 6 Concurrent Calls | 12 Concurrent Calls | 23 Concurrent Calls | 46 Concurrent Calls | 92 Concurrent Calls
Bundle - 600 US Off-Net LD per Customer Site per Customer Site per Customer Site | per Customer Site per Customer Site
minutes per month per Concurrent
Call

US Off-Net Calling Charge

Per Minute in excess of 600 minutes per Concurrent Call - $0.0200

Doc ID: ABN63650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm

V11 -09/12/2014

ATE&T and Customer Confidential Information

Page 2 of 7

16




e .
g atat AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

International Off-Net Calling As specified in the ABN Express VPN Value Bundle Service Guide, Rate Table for International Off-Net Outbound
Charge Calls

* - Cannot be used in conjunction with AT&T Business in a Box® Service

5.3 AT&T Businessina Box® Service

Senvide Component Replaf:ement On-Site Maintenance Life-Cycle Management Charges - Service
- Next Business Day Shipped | - o 4y7y4y Monthly Charges Charges
Service (5x8) Monthly Charges
Component/Device Per Site | Per Occurrence during Service
Monthly Service Charge Monthly Service Charge Standard Business Hours (M - F, Charge
8:00 am- 5:00 pm, local time) List Price
Base Unit 12 Port* $0.00 $0.00 Additional Service $260.00
Base Unit 24 Port $56.00 $76.00 Delete Service $500.00
8 Port POE Add-On $24.00 $28.00 IP Version Change $500.00
24 Port POE Add-On $60.00 $68.00
8 Port Analog Module $28.00 $32.00
Add-On*

* Note: Limit of one Base Unit 12 Port or 24 port per circuit; Limit of three of each type of Add-On’s per circuit.

5.4 AT&T IP Toll-Free

AT&T IP Toll-Free

Interstate IP Toll-Free Usage ) Per Minute - $0.020
Canada to US IP Toll-Free Usage Per Minute - $0.049
Intrastate (Inter- and IntraLATA) IP Toll-Free Usage and IP Transfer Connect Usage Rates are specified in the applicable Service Publication

5.5 Availability: ABN Express VPN Value Bundle is only available to Customers: (1) not currently purchasing, or who have not purchased in the past 12
months, AT&T IP Flexible Reach, AT&T MIS with the MPLS PNT feature or AT&T Network Based Firewall Service and (2) order and install ABN Express
VPN Value Bundle Service at a minimum of at least two Sites.

5.6 Early Termination Charges: In the event Customer terminates any Service or Service Component(s) prior to the expiration of the Term in addition to
liability for all charges incurred through the disconnection of the Service or Service Component(s), Customer is liable for the following: (i) Customer must
reimburse AT&T for any unrecoverable time and materials costs, including any third party charges, incurred prior to the effective date of the termination;
plus, (ii) any unpaid nonrecurring charges; plus, (i) an termination fee equal to 50% of the total monthly recurring charges for the terminated Service or
Service Component(s) for each month remaining in the Term (“Early Termination Fee” or “ETF”) or (iv) 50% of the monthly recurring charges for the
terminated Service or Service Component multiplied by the months remaining in an applicable Minimum Payment Period. For Customers with a MARC,
Customer is liable for Section 5.6(i) and (i) as specified above, and an Early Termination Fee which shall be equal to 50% of any unsatisfied MARC.

6. ABN Express VPN Value Bundle General Terms and Conditions
6.1 AT&T Corp. or its Affiliates (“collectively AT&T") will provide Customer the services and equipment described in this Agreement (“Services®), and each

individual component of a Service (“Service Component™), under the terms of this Agreement, which incorporates-by-reference the terms and conditions set
forth under the Service Publication for each individual service provided under this Agreement as if originally set forth herein. AT&T may revise Service
Publications at any time. The order of priority of the documents that form this Agreement is: first, this Agreement; then the AUP and then the applicable
Service Guides, and, for Mobility Services, (i) the “Optional Products, Services, Equipment and Programs” section of the Service Guide and associated
Sales Information for an Optional Program selected by Customer or a CRU will be first in priority but only with respect to such Optional Program, and (ji) the
Sales Infarmation for any Mobility Service not provided under a Business Plan selected by Customer or a CRU will be first in priority but only with respect to
such Mobility Service, except the AT&T Business Voice over IP (BVolP) Services Service Guide Section SD-3.2 “Telephone Numbers®, which shall have the
same priority as these Agreement Terms and the AUP. Customer agrees that it is impractical for AT&T to provide here all the terms and conditions,
including rates and charges, which are set forth in the Service Publications, and that AT&T has acted reasonably in providing access to all Service
Publications. An “Affiliate” of a party is an entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with such party.

Doc ID: ABNG3650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm V11 -09/12f2014
AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 3 of 7

17




Sz
g atat AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

6.2 Services: AT&T will provide or arrange to have the Service or Service Component provided to Customer subject to availability and operational
limitations of systems, facilities and equipment. Customer may not resell a Service or Service Component without AT&T's prior written consent. Customer
will cause anyone who uses or accesses any Service provided to Customer (“Users”) to comply with this Agreement, and Customer is responsible for their
use of the Service or any Service Component, unless expressly provided to the contrary in a Service Publication. Customer agrees on its behalf and on
behalf of its Affiliates and Users that at all times their use will comply with the AUP.

6.3 Customer will in a timely manner allow AT&T to access, or, at Customer's expense, obtain timely access for AT&T to, property (other than public
property) and equipment reasonably required to provide the Service. Access includes information and the right to construct, install, repair, maintain, replace
and remove access lines and network facilities, and use ancillary equipment space within the building, necessary for Customer’s connection to AT&T’s
network. Customer will furnish any conduit, holes, wireways, wiring, plans, equipment, space, power/utilities, and other items required to perform installation
of the Services, and obtain any necessary licenses, permits and consents (including easements and rights-of-way).

6.4 Customer will ensure that the location at which AT&T installs, maintains or provides the Service is a suitable and safe working environment, free of any
substance or material that poses an unreasonable risk to health, safety, or property or whose use, transport, storage, handling, disposal, or release is
regulated by any law related to pollution, protection of air, water, or soil, or health and safety. If AT&T encounters any such hazardous materials at a
Customer location, AT&T may terminate the affected Service Component, or suspend performance until Customer removes the hazardous materials.

6.5 AT&T Equipment: The Service may include use of certain equipment owned by AT&T and located at Customer's premises (*AT&T Equipment”), but
title to the AT&T Equipment will remain with AT&T. Customer must provide electric power for the AT&T Equipment, must keep the AT&T Equipment
physically secure and free from liens and encumbrances and will bear the risk of loss or damage (other than ordinary wear and tear) to AT&T Equipment.

6.6 Software: Any software provided to Customer by AT&T will be governed by the written terms and conditions applicable to such software. Subject to
such terms and conditions, title to this software remains with AT&T or its supplier. Customer must comply with all such terms and conditions, which take
precedence over this Agreement.

6.7 Prices: Unless this Agreement states otherwise, the prices listed in Section 5 of this Agreement are stabilized for the Term. Prices during the Term for
each Service and Service Component are provided either in the incorporated Service Publication or are shown above depending on the Service or Service
Component. When there is a conflict between this Agreement and the prices, discounts or waivers in the Service Publication for a Service or Service
Component, this Agreement controls. During any Auto-Renewal Period, AT&T will continue to provide the Service under the Agreement Terms that are in-
effect on the last day of the prior Initial or Auto-Renewal Term, unless stated otherwise in this Agreement.

6.8 Taxes; Surcharges; Fees. Prices in this Agreement are exclusive of, and Customer will pay, all current or future taxes, surcharges, recovery fees,
shipping charges, and other similar charges.

6.9 Billing, Payments and Deposits: Payment is due 30 calendar days after the invoice date and must refer to the invoice number. Restrictive
endorsements or other statements on checks are void. If Customer does not dispute a charge in writing within 6 months after the invoice date, Customer
waives the right to dispute the charge (except to the extent applicable law or regulation requires otherwise). AT&T may charge a late fee for overdue
payments at the lower of 1.5% per month (18% per annum) or the maximum rate allowed by law; plus all costs (including attorney fees) of collecting
delinquent or dishonored payments. AT&T may require Customer to establish a deposit as a condition of providing Services. Customer authorizes AT&T to
investigate Customer's credit and share informalion about Customer with credit reporting agencies.

6.10 Termination and Suspension: Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice if the other parly becomes insolvent, ceases
operations, is the subject of a bankruptcy petition, or makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors. AT&T may terminate or suspend a Service or
Service Component, and if the activity implicates the entire Agreement, terminate the entire Agreement, immediately upon notice if Customer: (i) commits a
fraud upon AT&T; (ii) utilizes the Service to commit a fraud upon another party; (iii) unlawfully uses the Service; (iv) abuses or misuses AT&T’s network or
Service; or (v) interferes with another customer’s use of AT&T's nefwork or services. Customer may terminate an affected Service for material breach by
AT&T without penalty, and AT&T may terminate or suspend (and later terminate) an affected Service for material breach by Customer, if such breach is not
cured within 30 calendar days of notice. If Customer fails to rectify a violation of the AUP within 5 calendar days after receiving notice from AT&T, then
AT&T may suspend or terminate the affected Service. AT&T has the right, however, to suspend or terminate the applicable portion of the Service
immediately when: (i) AT&T's suspension or termination is in response to multiple or repeated AUP violations or complaints; (ii) AT&T is acting in response
to a court order or governmental notice that certain conduct must be stopped; or (iii) AT&T reasonably determines: (a) that it may be exposed to sanctions,
liability, prosecution, or other adverse consequences under applicable law if AT&T were to allow the violation to continue; (b) that such violation may cause
harm to or interfere with the integrity or normal operations or security of AT&T's network or networks with which AT&T is interconnected or interfere with
another customer’s use of AT&T Services or the Internet; or (c) that such violation otherwise presents imminent risk of harm to AT&T or AT&T’s customers
or their respective employees. If AT&T terminates a Service Component under this Section, Customer is liable for the applicable early termination or
cancellation charge for that Service Component,

Doc ID: ABN63650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm V11-09/12/2014

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 4 of 7

18




—
g atet AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

6.11 Discontinuance. Notwithstanding that this Agreement may commit AT&T to provide a Service to Customer for a Term, unless applicable local law or
regulation mandates otherwise, AT&T may discontinue providing the Service or an individual component of the Service (“Service Component”) upon 30
calendar days' notice.

6.12 Disclaimer of Warranties and Liability: AT&T MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT OR THOSE ARISING FROM USAGE OF TRADE OR
COURSE OF DEALING. FURTHER, AT&T MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT TELEPHONE CALLS OR OTHER TRANSMISSIONS WILL BE ROUTED OR
COMPLETED WITHOUT ERROR OR INTERRUPTION (INCLUDING 911 CALLS), NOR ANY WARRANTY REGARDING NETWORK SECURITY, THE
ENCRYPTION EMPLOYED BY ANY SERVICE, THE INTEGRITY OF ANY DATA THAT IS SENT, BACKED UP, STORED OR LOAD BALANCED, THAT
AT&T'S SECURITY PROCEDURES WILL PREVENT THE LOSS OR ALTERATION OF OR IMPROPER ACCESS TO CUSTOMER'S DATA OR
TRANSMISSIONS OR THAT SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE. AT&T WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES RELATING
TO: INTEROPERABILITY, ACCESS TO OR INTERCONNECTION OF THE SERVICES WITH APPLICATIONS, EQUIPMENT, SERVICES, CONTENT OR
NETWORKS PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER OR OTHERS; SERVICE DEFECTS, SERVICE LEVELS, DELAYS OR INTERRUPTIONS (EXCEPT FOR
LIABILITY FOR SUCH EXPLICITLY SET FORTH HEREIN); ANY INTERRUPTION OR ERROR IN ROUTING OR COMPLETING CALLS OR OTHER
TRANSMISSIONS (INCLUDING 911 CALLS); LOST OR ALTERED TRANSMISSIONS; OR UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS TO OR THEFT, ALTERATION,
LOSS, OR DESTRUCTION OF CUSTOMER'S OR OTHERS’ APPLICATIONS, CONTENT, DATA, NETWORK OR SYSTEMS.

6.13 Limitation of Liability

6.13.1 AT&T'S ENTIRE LIABILITY, AND CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF MISTAKES, OMISSIONS,
INTERRUPTIONS, DELAYS, ERRORS OR DEFECTS IN THE SERVICES, AND NOT CAUSED BY CUSTOMER'S NEGLIGENCE, WILL NOT EXCEED
THE APPLICABLE CREDITS SPECIFIED IN THE SERVICE PUBLICATION, OR IF NO CREDITS ARE SPECIFIED, AN AMOUNT EQUIVALENT TO THE
PROPORTIONATE CHARGE TO CUSTOMER FOR THE PERIOD OF SERVICE DURING WHICH SUCH MISTAKE, OMISSION, INTERRUPTION,
DELAY, ERROR OR DEFECT IN THE SERVICE OCCURS AND CONTINUES. THIS LIMITATION WILL NOT APPLY TQ: () BODILY INJURY, DEATH,
OR DAMAGE TO REAL OR TANGIBLE PROPERTY DIRECTLY CAUSED BY AT&T'S NEGLIGENCE; OR (Il) SETTLEMENT, DEFENSE OR PAYMENT
OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE “THIRD PARTY CLAIMS" PARAGRAPH.

6.13.2 NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES.

6.13.3 These disclaimers and limitations of liability will apply regardless of the form of action, whether in contract, tort, strict liability or otherwise and whether
damages were foreseeable. These disclaimers and limitations of liability will survive failure of any exclusive remedies provided in this Agreement.

6.14 Third-Parly Claims
6.14.1 AT&T agrees atits expense to defend or settle any claim against Customer, its Affiliates, and its and their employees and directors, and to pay all

compensatory damages finally awarded against such parties where the claim alleges that a Service Component infringes any patent, frademark, copyright,
or trade secret, except where the claim arises out of: (i) Customer's or a User's content; (i) modifications to the Service by Customer or third parties, or
combinations of the Service with any services or products not provided by AT&T; (iii) AT&T's adherence to Customer's written requirements; or (iv) use of
the Service in violation of this Agreement. AT&T may at its option either procure the right for Customer to continue using, or may replace or modify, the
alleged infringing Service so that the Service becomes non-infringing, or failing that to terminate the Service without further liability to Customer.

6.14.2 Customer agrees at its expense to defend or settle any claim against AT&T, its Affiliates, and its and their employees, directors, subcontractors, and
suppliers, and to pay all compensatory damages finally awarded against such parties where: (i) the claim alleges that a Service infringes any patent,
trademark, copyright or trade secret, and falls within the exceptions under (i)~(iv) above; or (i) the claim alleges a breach by Customer, its Affiliates, or Users
of a software license agreement governing software provided with the Services.

6.15 ARBITRATION: ALL CLAIMS OR DISPUTES ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE SETTLED BY BINDING ARBITRATION
ADMINISTERED BY THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION UNDER ITS COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION RULES (SUBJECT TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT) AND ANY JUDGMENT ON ANY AWARD RENDERED MAY BE ENTERED AND ENFORCED
IN ANY COURT HAVING JURISDICTION. THE PARTIES WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OR TO PARTICIPATE IN OR INITIATE CLASS
ACTIONS; IF THE PARTIES CANNOT WAIVE THESE RIGHTS, THIS ENTIRE SECTION IS NULL AND VOID.

6.16 General Provisions: This Agreement and any pricing or other proposals are confidential to Customer and AT&T. Neither party may publicly disclose
any confidential information without the prior written consent of the other, unless authorized by applicable law, regulation or court order. Until directed
otherwise by Customer in writing, if AT&T designates a dedicated account representative as Customer's primary contact with AT&T, Customer authorizes
that representative to discuss and disclose Customer's customer proprietary network information to any employee or agent of Customer without a need for

Doc ID: ABNB3650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm V11-09/12/2014

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 5 of 7

18




-
g atat AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

further authentication or authorization. This Agreement may not be assigned by Customer without the prior written consent of AT&T, which consent will not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. AT&T may: (i) assign in whole or relevant part its rights and obligations under this Agreement to an Affiliate, or

(ii) subcontract work to be performed under this Agreement, but AT&T will in each such case remain financially responsible for the performance of such
obligations. Any claim or dispute arising out of this Agreement must be filed within two years after the cause of action arises. This Agreement does not
provide any third party (including Users) any remedy, claim, liability, cause of action or other right or privilege. Regulated Service Components will be
governed by the law and regulations applied by the regulatory commission having jurisdiction over that Service Component. Otherwise, this Agreement will
be governed by the law and regulations of the State set forth above for Customer's address, without regard to its conflict of law principles. This Agreement is
limited to Service provided in the United States. The United Nations Convention on Contracis for International Sale of Goods will not apply. Except for
payment of amounts due, neither party will be liable for any delay, failure in performance, loss or damage due to causes beyond such party's reasonable
control, such as fire; flood; lightning; earthquakes; power failures or blackouts; severe weather; explosions; wars or armed conflicts; national, state or local
emergencies; civil disobedience; shortage of labor or materials; labor disputes, strikes, or other concerted acts of workers (whether of AT&T or others);
embargoes; acts of God; acts of terrorism, or acts of vandalism or acts otherwise known as "Force Majeure”. Any notice required or permitted under this
Agreement must be in writing and addressed to the parties at the address below. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
concerning the Service and supersedes all other written or oral agreements. This Agreement will not be modified or supplemented by any written or oral
statements, proposals, service descriptions, or purchase order forms.

THE UNDERSIGNED, ON BEHALF OF CUSTOMER, ACKNOWLEDGES THAT CUSTOMER HAS RECEIVED AND UNDERSTANDS THE ADVISORIES
CONCERNING THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH E911 SERVICE USING A VOICE OVER IP SYSTEM MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE OR MAY BE IN
SOME WAY LIMITED BY COMPARISON TO USING TRADITIONAL WIRELINE TELEPHONE SERVICE. SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES INCLUDE, BUT
ARE NOT LIMITED TO, RELOCATION OF THE END USER’S TELEPHONE SETS OR OTHER EQUIPMENT, USE OF A NON-NATIVE OR VIRTUAL
TELEPHONE NUMBER, FAILURE IN THE BROADBAND CONNECTION, LOSS OF ELECTRICAL POWER, AND DELAYS THAT MAY OCCUR IN
UPDATING THE CUSTOMER’S LOCATION IN THE AUTOMATIC LOCATION INFORMATION DATABASE. THE ADVISORIES ARE FURTHER
PROVIDED AT HTTP.//SERVICEGUIDENEW.ATT.COM.

Doc ID; ABNG3650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm V11-09/112/2014

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 6 of 7

20




L
g atat AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

By signing below, the person signing on behalf of customer personally represents and warrants to AT&T that he or she has the authority and
power to sign on behalf of Customer and bind Customer to this Agreement. Customer understands and agrees to be bound by the terms and
conditions for service as described in the attached terms and conditions, including but not limited to all terms and conditions incorporated by
reference. THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES AN ARBITRATION PROVISION WHICH MAY BE ENFORCED BY THE PARTIES. This Agreement is
effective when signed hy both Customer and AT&T Corp. (“Effective Date”)

Customer (by its authorized representative) AT&T Corp. (by its authorized representative)
By: By:
Name: Name:

—) Title: Title:
Date: Date:

Doc ID: ABN63650VAL-3y -security -NAT bfm V11 -09/12/2014
AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 7 of 7

21




@ atait

AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

INITIAL ORDER SUMMARY

Services in Customer’s Initial Order — Check ABN Express VPN Value Plan Options to be ordered at each Customer Site

Customer Site # 1

Street Address: 400 BOARDMAN AVE

City: TRAVERSE CITY ST: Michigan Main Telephone Number: 2319224440

Site Name:
AT&T VPN Value | Locations in and outside of AT&T ILEC Areas - With or Without Calling Plan
Bundle [JA-1.5M [] E1 -20M (In AT&T ILEC Areas Only)
Bandwidth X B-3M ] E2-20M
with Managed []cC-6M []F-50m
Router [CID-10m [1G-100m
AT&T VPN Value | [] Option1- 6 Concurrent Calls VPN Value Bundle Network Security with Internet Access
Bundle Calling | [] Option 2 - 12 Concurrent Calls Yes - Must be used by each Customer Site ordered under this Agreement
Plan Bundle X Option 3 - 23 Concurrent Calls A KB [Jc [Op [t 2 OF 06
[] Option 4 - 46 Concurrent Calls [] No - Service will not be required
[] option 5 - 92 Concurrent Calls
] Not Applicable
AT&T Business | [ Yes (Not available for AT&T VPN Calling Plan Bundle Option 4 — 46 Concurrent Calls or Option 5 — 92 Concurrent Calls)
ina Box”
Service (optional) | DX No
ATS&TIP Toll- DX Yes
Free (optional)
] No

Services in Customer’s Initial Order = Check ABN Express VPN Value Plan Options to be ordered at each Customer Site

Customer Site # 2

Street Address: 1750 PROUGH RD SW

City: KALKASKA ST: Michigan Main Telephone Number: 2312586600
Site Name:
AT&T VPN Value | Locations in and outside of AT&T ILEC Areas - With or Without Calling Plan
Bundle [JA-1.5M [1E1-20M (In AT&T ILEC Areas Only)
Bandwidth X B-3M []E2-20m
with Managed []C-6M []F-50m
Router [1D-10M []G-100M
AT&T VPN Value | [] Option 1— 6 Concurrent Calls VPN Value Bundle Network Security with Internet Access
Bundle Calling | [] Option 2~ 12 Concurrent Calls D Yes - Must be used by each Customer Site ordered under this Agreement
Plan Bundle (] Option 3 - 23 Concurrent Calls OA B [Jc [p et Oe2 OF Oe

(] Option 4 - 46 Concurrent Calls
] Option 5 - 92 Concurrent Calls
X Not Applicable

[C] No - Service will not be required

AT&T Business

[] Yes (Not available for AT&T VPN Calling Plan Bundle Option 4 — 46 Concurrent Calls or Option 5 — 92 Concurrent Calls)

ina Box®
Service (optional) XI No
AT&T IP Toll- X Yes
Free (optional)

[] No

V11-09/12/2014

22

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 1 of 1




—
g atat AT&T Business Network (ABN) Express VPN Value Bundle

Letter of Authorization (“LOA”)

Customer Name: Customer Account #: Customer Full Address & Zip: Customer Contact: Scott
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER 400 BOARDMAN AVE, TRAVERSE Menhart

CITY,MI,496842542, Tel. #: 2319224440

Tel # 2319224440 eMail Scott.Menhart@tclp.org

1. | authorize and appoint AT&T as my agent to take the steps necessary to switch providers, including to handle all arrangements with the Local
Exchange Company(s) (LEC), to change (or establish) AT&T Long Distance Service, 'Local Toll' Service, Local Service and International Service to AT&T.
AT&T may, upon Customer's express authorization in each instance, offer such service for all telephone lines associated with the main Billed Telephone
Number(s) (BTNs) specified in the table below, and to issue instructions to and to otherwise deal with the LEC regarding the BTNs.

2. lunderstand that: a) only one carrier may be designated for Long Distance Service (“out-of-state” in Connecticut) on any individual telephone number;
b) only one carrier may be designated for ‘Local Toll' Service, (and in Connecticut “in-state”) on any individual telephone number; c) only one carrier may be
designated for Local Service on any individual telephone number; and, d) only one carrier may be designated for International Service on any individual
telephone number.

3. lunderstand that Customer may be required to pay a one fime charge per line to switch providers. If Company later wishes to refurn to its current service
provider, Company may be required to pay a reconnection charge to that company.

4. Customer Authorizes ATAT to Establish or | Long Distance CIYES
Switch Services Checked to AT&T for the | Local (Infrastate) Tol [IYES
telephone numbers fisted in Atiachment A to | Local Service CIYES
this LOA. Intemational Service (For Hawail Only) LIYES

5. Customer expressly acknowledges that ils | AT&T will maintain a record of any such locations, and of the Billed Telephone Numbers | [_]YES
authorization is applicable to the locations orto | (BTNs), and Working Telephone Numbers (WTNs) to which this Authorization applies. |If
the BTNs and WTNs in the United States | under Customer’s term agreement with AT&T it can add telephone numbers during the course
listed in Attachment A to this Authorization. of the term, Customer may add WTNs under this Authorization without the need to modify this
LOA or submit a new LOA. (Customer can only select 1 Option for Authorization).

This Authorization revokes any prior such authorization for the services involved here, and may be revoked at any time, and shall continue in force unless
and until revoked by the Customer. | understand that by signing this document | am authorizing a change in Customer’s current telecommunication service
provider for the telephone numbers listed in Attachment A to this LOA. By signing below, the person signing on behalf of Customer personally represents and
warrants to AT&T that he or she has the authority and power to sign on behalf of Customer.

Customer: (Full Legal Business Name)

By: (Signature) (Customer completes)

»

Print Name (Customer completes)

Title (Customer completes)

DATE

V11-09/12/2014

23

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information
Page 1 of 1




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

tsT. |912

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: February 4, 2015
Subject: Telecommunications Rate Public Hearing

After reviewing the telecommunications rate that was last adopted in November 1988, staff has
prepared new calculations based upon APPA’s guidance through their publication Pole Attachment
Workbook.

The Federal Communications Commission issues guidance on three different methods for investor
owned utilities of how to calculate pole attachment fees. There is the Cable Rate Formula,
Telecommunications Rate Formula and the New Telecom Rate. Each of these rates do not allocate
all of the common or support space of the pole to all attaching entities, instead they only allocate by
usable space, allocate 2/3™ of the common space, or only allow 66% or 44% of the capital costs
dependent on whether the utility is located in an urban or nonurban area. In summary, these rates do
not allocate the full costs of the pole to the attaching entities, thereby subsidizing the cable and
telecommunication industries,

Because TCL&P is a municipaily owned utility, TCL&P does not have to follow the guidelines set
forth by the Federal Communications Commission. APPA has developed a method for municipal
utilities, which addresses equality of allocating all common (usable and safety space) and support
space to all pole attachments entities. (A typical pole is 37.5 feet, the support space is 24 feet and the
usable space is 10 feet with a safety space required of 3.5 feet.) Staff followed the formula
calculation utilizing June 30, 2014 audited numbers and computed the new pole attachment rate at
$12.40 per pole attachment, which is a $2.40 increase in the tariff rate. Included in the
telecommunication tariff rate is an inflationary increase on an annual basis based on the Consumer
Price Index — All Urban Consumers based period 1982-84, which will allow the rate to be kept
current and not have to be reviewed in the near future.

Staff recommends the Board authorizes the Secretary to set a public hearing for the proposed
telecommunications rate increase. This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed
by staff to be a non-controversial item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you
agree with staff’s recommendation,

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the

agenda for full discussion.

(Motion is on the following page)

24




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE SECRETARY TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING FOR
THE PROPOSED TELECOMMUNICATIONS RATE INCREASE TO BE HELD AT THE
FEBRUARY 24, 2015 REGULAR MEETING; AND FURTHER THAT A NOTICE OF THE
PUBLIC HEARING BE POSTED ON THE UTILITY’S WEBSITE AND PLACED IN THE
TRAVERSE CITY RECORD EAGLE.

25




City of Traverse City
Light and Power Department
Effective:

TELECOMMUNICATIONS RATI

{Rate "TC")

Availability:

Available to customers, on an individually-negotiated basis, other than public utilities located
within the Department’s existing Setvice Area. This rate is offered at the discretion of the Light
and Power Board and may not be available if the Board determines, in any particular case, that it
is not in the public interest to do so. A signed Agreement is required, which describes terms and
conditions of service to which this rate applies.

Nature of Service:

Attachments to the Department’s poles must conform to applicable federal, state, and local
electrical code requirements as well as Department’s standards — particularly with conformance
to separation of services. The Department reserves the right to remove attachments at any time,
without notice, if removal is required for safety or emergency reasons. The Department will not
be liable for damage to telecommunications facilities. If any such damage should occur,
customer must pay for replacement, relocation, or repair,

Rates and Charges:

One time license agreement fee: $360.00
Permit application fee $50.00
Annual Pole Attachment Fee: $12.40/pole

The Annual Pole Attachment Fee shall be adjusted annually by any change in the Index known
as “United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index — All Urban Consumers,
base period 1982-84 — 100, (CPI-U),” herein referred to as the “Index.”

Any unauthorized attachment penalty fee will be five times the annual attachment fee, per
occurrence.

Failure to timely transfer, abandon or remove facilities or improperly assign penalty will be /5"
the annual attachment fee per day, per pole, first thirty (30) days; after the initial thirty (30) days
the penalty shall be equal to the annual attachment fee per day, per pole.

Whenever this Agreement requires Licensee to pay for work done or contracted by Utility, the
charge for such work shall include reasonable material, labor, engineering, administrative and
applicable overhead costs. If Licensee was required to perform work and fails to perform such
work, necessitating completion of the work by Utility, Utility may charge an additional ten
percent (10%) of its costs or assess the penalty specified above.

20




Du_e Date:

Payment of the Applicable Annual Rates shall be due no later than July 31 of each year for the
previous rental period. The initial annual rental period shall commence upon the execution of
this Agreement and conclude on June 30 of the next year and each subsequent annual rental
period commence on the following July 1 and conclude on June 30 of the subsequent year.

The due date for billings will be thirty (30) days after the billing is mailed. A late charge of 1%
per month compounded for any delinquent payments.

27




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

‘.‘ST. 19]9

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller andwb
Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services & Key Accounts qp
Date: January 30, 2015
Subject: Public Hearing: Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary Service Rate

All of Traverse City Light & Power’s (“TCL&P”) customers have been affected by rising costs of
purchased power due to inflation and increased Federal and State regulations. The rising costs are
also attributed to coal plants being retrofitted to meet the EPA Clean Air Act mandates, coal plants
decommissioning with replacement generation unknown at this time, and the premium costs
associated with renewable energy requirements mandated by the State. The customer’s most
significantly impacted by these regulations is the industrial customer class.

After the July 2014 rate increase, it came to TCL&P’s attention that Consumers Energy has a Metal
Melting Primary Pilot Rate (*“MMPPR”) within their rate schedules that a TCL&P customer would
benefit from if the utility were to offer a similar rate. It would allow the customer to be more
competitive in the market with similar entities within the State of Michigan. As one of TCL&P’s
goals being to provide the lowest rates in the area, staff began the process of gathering information
and analyzing the difference between TCL&P’s current industrial rate and the MMPPR.

After analyzing the data, staff shared the information with Utility Financial Solutions. Although all
the necessary information on Consumers Energy’s rate calculation was not available, specifically the
critical peak event information, the analysis provided as close to an apples-to-apples comparison to
TCL&P’s Primary Rate as possible. The analysis showed that the Consumers Energy rate was more
competitive than the rate TCL&P currently offers to a qualifying customer. Based on this
information, Utility Financial Solutions created a proposed Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary
Service Rate, which is attached. This rate accelerates the cost of service subsidization between
classes while moving to a more accurate way of billing based on the demand charge units (KW)
rather than the energy charge (kWh). (This was discussed at the December 9, 2014 meeting with
Mark Beauchamp’s presentation.) The proposed rate would result in an 8.8% decrease for qualifying
industrial customers currently on TCL&P’s Primary Rate, or an annual savings of approximaiely
$180,000.

Currently, there is only one customer of TCL&P’s that would qualify for this rate. Included in your
packet is a letter from that customer in support of the creation of the new rate.

Staff was initially going to recommend the rate be retroactive to the uncapping of the PCR, October
1, 2013, when the initial impact of true purchase power costs was passed through to the utility’s
customets, However, General Counsel recommended to not make a rate retroactive that would
impact the June 30, 2014 audited fiscal year; therefore, staff’s recommendation is to make the rate

28




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 10, 2015

retroactive for the qualifying customer effective July 1, 2014 to coincide with the last rate increase
and start of the new fiscal year. Prior to this rate being implemented a public hearing needs to take
place. It is staff’s recommendation that the Board set a public hearing for the proposed rate at its
February 24, 2015 meeting,

If after Board discussion you are in agreement with staff’s recommendation, the following motion
would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT
THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZES THE SECRETARY TO SET A PUBLIC
HEARING FOR THE CREATION OF A METAL MELTING & HEAT TREATING
PRIMARY SERVICE RATE TO BE HELD AT THE FEBRUARY 24, 2015 REGULAR
MEETING; AND FURTHERMORE THAT A NOTICE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING BE
POSTED ON THE UTILITY’S WEBSITE AND PLACED IN THE TRAVERSE CITY
RECORD EAGLE.

29




City of Traverse City
Light and Power Department

Effective:
METAL MELTING & HEAT TREATING PRIMARY SERVICE
(Rate "MM")
Availability:

Open to any customer who provides metal melting and heat treating services and is desiring
primary voltage service for general use where the billing demand is 500 kW or more. This rate
is not available for street lighting service or for resale purposes.

Nature of Service:

Alternating current, 60 hertz, single phase or three phase, the particular nature of the voltage in
each case to be determined by the Department.

Where service is supplies at a nominal voltage of 15,000 volts or less, the customer shall furnish,
install and maintain all necessary transforming, controlling and protective equipment.

Beginning July 1, 2014 any new customers must purchase and retain ownership of all necessary
transforming, controlling and protective equipment, and, install and maintain this equipment at
their expense. The customer is responsible for all costs and liability associated with the
transforming, controlling and protective equipment.

Where the Department elects to measure the service at a nominal voltage of less than 2,400 volts,
3% will be added for billing purposes to the demand and energy measurements thus made.

Monthly Rate:

Customer Charge: $40.00 per meter per month, plus

Capacity Charge: $8.48 per kW of the highest on-peak billing demand
for the past twelve months

Energy Charge: 6.4¢ per kWh for all kWh consumed during the on-

peak period, November through May.

6.7¢ per kW for all kWh consumed during the on-peak
period, June through October

5.0¢ per kWh for all kWh consumed during the off-
peak period.

Power Service Cost Recovery:

This rate is subject to the Department’s Power Service Cost Recovery.

30




Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary Service (Rate”MM”), cont.

High Load Factor Credit:

Monthly credits will be given to high load factor customers as follows:

Load Factor % Credit on Total Billed Amount

90% - 100% 5%
80% - 89% 4%
70% - 79% 3%

Minimum Charge:

The capacity charge included in the rate.

Due Date:

The due date of the customer’s bill will be shown on the bill and will be at least twenty-one (21)
days. Payments received after the due date are considered late, and a penalty charge of 2% shall
be imposed as a one-time charge.

On-Peak Billing Demand:

The on-peak billing demand shall be the kilowatts (kW) supplied during the 30-minute period of
maximum use during on-peak hours during the month, per schedule below.

Schedule of On-Peak, Off-Peak and Intermediate-Peak Hours

The following schedule shall apply Monday through Friday (except holidays designated by the
Department). Weekends and holidays are off-peak.

On-Peak Hours: | 10:00 am, {to | 5:00 p.m.
Off-Peak Hours: | 5:00 p.m. to | 10:00 a.m.

Holidays designated by the Department

The following are designated as holidays by the Department:
New Year’s Day Independence Day  Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Labor Day Christmas Day

Adjustment for Power Factor:

This rate requires a determination of the average power factor maintained by the customer during
the billing period. Such average power factor will be determined through metering of lagging
kilovar hours and kilowatt hours during the billing period. The calculated ratio of lagging
kilovar hours to kilowatt hours will then be converted to the average power factor for the billing

31




Metal Melting & Heat Treating Primary Service (Rate”MM”), cont,

period by using the appropriate conversion factor. Whenever the average power factor during
the billing period is above 0.899 or below 0.800, the capacity charge will be adjusted as follows:

a. If the average power factor during the billing period is 0.900 or higher, the capacity
charge will be reduced by 2%. This credit shall not in any case be used to reduce the
prescribed minimum charge.

b. If the average power factor during the billing period is less than 0.800, the capacity
charge will be increased by the ratio that 0.800 bears to the customer’s average power
factor during the billing period.

32




2411 West Aero Park Cour
Traverse City, Michigan 49686
Telephone: (231) 941-7800

CENTURY SUN Telefax: (231) 941-2346
METAL TREATING

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M| 49686 -
Dear TCL & P Board members,

On July 1, 2014 we received a substantial rate increase for our electricity. On October 8, 2014 we were
informed that the Power Service Cost Recovery rate will be increasing as well. The combination of these
increases is having a significant negative impact on our financial stability and threatens our ability to
compete within the metal treating markets.

At this time we would like to respectfully request that you consider a “Metal Melting Rate” for large
industrial energy consumers such as ourselves. This type of “Pilot Rate” could substantially lower our
energy costs and allow us to compete on a more even playing field within our industry.

Any consideration on your part would be appreciated as it would be instrumental in helping us secure
and maintain our market share and the jobs that we provide for the community.

Sincerely,
Jim Black, Vice President
S hort

entury Sun Metal Treating ‘

A DI¥1SI0OH OF

33




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Investing Our Energy In You

2015 STRATEGIC PLAN
AT A GLANCE

STRATEGIC ISSUE: Financial Stability

OPERATING STRATEGY: “Maintain positive operating cash flows and adequate capital reserves to
sustain the financial health of the utility.”

BUSINESS GOALS:

1. Provide transparent communications on the financial health of the organization to customers
through an annual report by March 31, 2015.

2. Enhance public engagement through quarterly performance reporting to the Board and public
(on-going).

3. Gather information from the utility’s ratepayers as to an acceptable annual contribution to the
City of Traverse City.

4. Review current workplace flows for efficiency enhancement through new developed process
and procedures that will provide a proper planning environment and execution process for
utility projects.

5. Develop and implement rate structures to promote financial stability along with energy
conservation.

BOARD NOTES:

STRATEGIC ISSUE: Power Supply Strategy

OPERATING STRATEGY: “Ensure sufficient power supply in a fiscally responsible manner.”

BUSINESS GOALS:

L

Create a long-term plan designed to implement programs and/or incentives that will manage
load growth aimed at reducing on-peak demand by July 31, 2015. Energy efficiency programs
will be implemented to achieve the maximum energy efficiency outcomes for the dollar
amounts budgeted for the benefit of all ratepayers.

2. Implement recommendations from the Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) report.

3. Investigate generation opportunities that compliment the power supply mix.

4. Develop a plan for meeting State guidelines on the new Energy Plan — 2015.
BOARD NOTES:

34




cifeid ot ot Bl L 2015 STRATEGIC PLAN
LIGHT & POWER AT A GLANCE

Investing Our Energy In You

STRATEGIC ISSUE: System Reliability & Power Quality

OPERATING STRATEGY: “Take a proactive approach to maintain a high level of system reliability in a
cost effective manner.”

BUSINESS GOALS:

1. Annually review, enhance and develop system maintenance programs ensuring Average Service
Availability Index (ASAI) remains ahove 99.970%.
2. Develop a rating system to prioritize capital system improvements, to be updated annually.
3. Coordinate construction projects between TCL&P, other city departments, and other utilities.
4. Create written switching and tagging procedures as recommended by Hometown Connections.
BOARD NOTES:

STRATEGIC ISSUE: Technology

OPERATING STRATEGY: “Embrace technologies for the benefit of the customers and community.”

BUSINESS GOALS:

1. Enhance video security monitoring at TCL&P’s facilities by June 30, 2015.

2. Implement a new work order management system by June 30, 2015.

3. Install and implement an Integrated Voice Response (IVR) system for outage management by
September 30, 2015.

4. Fully implement MilSoft Outage Management and Engineering Analysis Program by June 30,
2015.

5. Update the utility’s Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System to current
technology by December 31, 2015.

6. Complete a study analyzing implementation reasons for the Advanced Metering Infrastructure
(AMI) Pilot by December 31, 2015.

7. Safeguard the utility from cyber threats to stay current with industry standards (on-going).

8. Create emergency technology back-up procedures by September 30, 2015.

9. Research and implement technology that will effectively communicate pertinent utility
information with customers.

BOARD NOTES:

35




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Investing Our Energy In You

2015 STRATEGIC PLAN
AT A GLANCE

STRATEGIC ISSUE: High Quality Workforce

OPERATING STRATEGY: “Create and maintain an organizational culture that empowers and educates
employees with the end result being a safe, motivated, and highly skilled workforce.”

BUSINESS GOALS:

1. Continue engaging in efforts towards employee professional development and performance
management in order to ensure that the workforce has the knowledge, skills and abilities to
evolve in their positions and are accountable in the work being performed (on-going).

2. Align work tasks, processes, and knowledge and skill requirements with both current and future
needs of the organization.

3. Enhance employee engagement on issues facing the utility through communication efforts that
are transparent and effective.

4. Modernize recruitment strategies, selection techniques and retention efforts to ensure that the
utility is successful in attracting and retaining qualified candidates.

5. Promote employer and worker awareness of, commitment to, and involvement with safety to
effect positive change in the workplace culture through cooperative efforts and strong
leadership.

BOARD NOTES:

STRATEGIC ISSUE: Customer Satisfaction

OPERATING STRATEGY: “Sustain and improve the utility’s goodwill to all customers by going the extra

mile.”

BUSINESS GOALS:

1. Maintain a customer satisfaction rating above 95%.

2. Maintain customer rates lower than other utilities in the area.

3. Enhance the utilities communications efforts and community involvement by implementing the
Communications Strategy.

4. Continually analyze new and current value-added programs to meet or exceed the customer
expectations of its utility.

5. Evaluate and implement services focused on assisting the unique needs of the utility’s key
account customers by December 31, 2015.

BOARD NOTES:

36




